
{05903084 / 1}

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

ASPEN SPECIALTY INSURANCE 

COMPANY, 

     Petitioner, 

v. 

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF 

CLARK; and THE HONORABLE 

GLORIA STURMAN, DISTRICT JUDGE, 

DEPT. 26, 

     Respondents, 

ST. PAUL FIRE & MARINE 

INSURANCE COMPANY; NATIONAL 

UNION FIRE INSURANCE COMPANY 

OF PITTSBURGH, PA; and ROOF DECK 

ENTERTAINMENT, LLC d/b/a 

MARQUEE NIGHTCLUB 

   Real Parties in Interest. 

Supreme Court Case No. ____________ 

Related to Nevada Supreme Court 

Case No. 81344 

District Court Case No. A-17-758902-C 

APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO 
PETITION UNDER NRAP 21 FOR  

WRIT OF MANDAMUS OR, IN THE 
ALTERNATIVE,  

PETITION FOR WRIT OF 
PROHIBITION 

Volume VX of XIX

Michael M. Edwards, Esq., NBN 6281 

Derek Noack, Esq., NBN 15074 

Stephanie D. Bedker, Esq., NBN 14169 

MESSNER REEVES LLP 

8945 W. Russell Road, Suite 300 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89148 

Telephone: (702) 363-5100 

Facsimile: (702) 363-5101  

Attorneys for Petitioner 

Aspen Specialty Insurance Company 

Electronically Filed
Nov 17 2021 01:46 p.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 83794   Document 2021-33126



 

{05903084 / 1} 

DOC 

NO. 

DOCUMENT VOL. BATES 

NO. 

1 [04/25/2018] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s First Amended Complaint [filed under 

seal] 

I AA00001-

AA00027 

2 [08/29/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 

Against Aspen Specialty Insurance Company 

I AA00028-

AA00051 

3 [08/29/2019] Exhibits and Declaration of Marc J. 

Derewetzky in Support of St. Paul Fire & Marine 

Insurance Company’s Motion for Partial Summary 

Judgment Against Aspen Specialty Insurance 

Company 

I, II AA00052-

AA00208 

4 [08/29/2019] Request for Judicial Notice in Support 

of St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Company’s 

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment Against 

Aspen Specialty Insurance Company 

II AA00209-

AA00285 

5 [09/13/2019] Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

II, III AA00286-

AA00312 

6 [09/13/2019] Declaration of Nicholas B. Salerno in 

Support of Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

III AA00313-

AA00315 

7 [09/13/2019] Declaration of Bill Bonbrest in 

Support of Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

III AA00316-

AA00318 

8 [09/13/2019] Request for Judicial Notice in Support 

of Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a Marquee 

Nightclub’s Motion for Summary Judgment 

III AA00319-

AA00322 

9 [09/13/2019] Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Appendix of Exhibits in 

Support of Motion for Summary Judgment 

III AA00323-

AA00411 

10 [09/13/2019] National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburgh PA’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

III AA00412-

AA00439 



{05903084 / 1}

11 [09/13/2019] Declaration of Nicholas B. Salerno in 

Support of National Union Fire Insurance Company 

of Pittsburgh, PA’s Motion for Summary Judgment 

III AA00440-

AA00442 

12 [09/13/2019] Declaration of Richard C. Perkins in 

Support of National Union Fire Insurance Company 

of Pittsburgh, PA’s Motion for Summary Judgment 

III, IV AA00443-

AA00507 

13 [09/13/2019] National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburgh PA’s Appendix of Exhibits 

in Support of Motion for Summary Judgment 

IV, V, 

VI, 

VII 

AA00508-

AA00937 

14 [09/13/2019] Request for Judicial Notice in Support 

of National Union Fire Insurance Company of 

Pittsburgh PA’s Motion for Summary Judgment 

VII AA00938-

AA00941 

15 [09/19/2019] Aspen Specialty Insurance Company’s 

Opposition to St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment 

and Countermotion for Summary Judgment 

VII, 

VIII 

AA00942-

AA01153 

16 [09/27/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to Motion for Summary 

Judgment filed by Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC 

d/b/a Marquee Nightclub and Countermotion Re: 

Duty to Indemnify 

VIII AA01154-

AA01173 

17 [09/27/2019] Declaration of William Reeves in 

Support of St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to Roof Deck 

Entertainment, LLC d/b/a Marquee Nightclub’s 

Motion for Summary Judgment  

VIII AA01174-

AA01176 

18 [09/27/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Response to Statement of Facts Offered 

by Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a Marquee 

Nightclub in Support of Its Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

VIII AA01177-

AA01185 

19 [09/27/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to Motion for Summary 

Judgment filed by AIG and Request for Discovery 

per NRCP 56(d)  

VIII, 

IX 

AA01186-

AA01221 

20 [09/27/2019] Declaration of Marc J. Derewetzky in 

Support of St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to AIG’s Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

IX AA01222-

AA01228 



 

{05903084 / 1} 

21 [09/27/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Response to National Union Fire 

Insurance Company of Pittsburgh PA’s Statement of 

Undisputed Facts in Support of Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

IX AA01229-

AA01234 

22 [09/27/2019] Consolidated Appendix of Exhibits in 

Support of St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to Motions for Summary 

Judgment filed by AIG and Roof Deck 

Entertainment, LLC d/b/a Marquee Nightlife 

IX, X AA01235-

AA01490 

23 [10/02/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Reply Supporting Its Motion for Partial 

Summary Judgment as to Aspen Specialty Insurance 

Company and Opposition to Aspen’s 

Countermotion for Summary Judgment 

X, XI AA01491-

AA01530 

24 [10/07/2019] Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Opposition to St. Paul Fire & 

Marine Insurance Company’s Countermotion for 

Summary Judgment 

XI AA01531-

AA01549 

25 [10/07/2019] Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Objection to Facts Not 

Supported by Admissible Evidence Filed in Support 

of St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Company’s 

Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment and 

Countermotion Re: Duty to Indemnify 

XI AA01550-

AA01557 

26 [10/07/2019] Aspen Specialty Insurance Company’s 

Reply in Support of Its Countermotion for Summary 

Judgment 

XI AA01578-

AA01592 

27 [10/08/2019] Recorder’s Transcript of Pending 

Motions  

XI AA01593-

AA01616 

28 [10/10/2019] National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburgh PA’s Reply in Support of Its 

Motion for Summary Judgment 

XI AA01617-

AA01633 

29 [10/10/2019] National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburgh PA’s Objections to Facts 

Not Supported by Admissible Evidence Filed in 

Support of St. Paul’s Opposition to Motion for 

Summary Judgment and Request for Discovery Per 

NRCP 56(d) 

XI, 

XII 

AA01634-

AA01656 



 

{05903084 / 1} 

30 [10/10/2019] Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC d/b/a 

Marquee Nightclub’s Reply in Support of Motion 

for Summary Judgment 

XII AA01657-

AA01667 

31 [10/10/2019] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Reply to Roof Deck Entertainment, 

LLC d/b/a Marquee Nightclub’s Opposition to St. 

Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Company’s 

Countermotion 

XII AA01668-

AA01679 

32 [10/15/2019] Recorder’s Transcript of Pending 

Motions 

XII AA01680-

AA01734 

33 [05/14/2020] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law 

and Order Granting Roof Deck Entertainment, LLC 

d/b/a Marquee Nightclub’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

XII AA01735-

AA01751 

34 [05/14/2019] Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law 

and Order Granting National Union Fire Insurance 

Company of Pittsburg PA’s Motion for Summary 

Judgment 

XII AA01752-

AA01770 

35 [05/14/2020] Order Denying St. Paul Fire & Marine 

Insurance Company’s Motion for Partial Summary 

Judgment and Order Granting in Part Aspen 

Specialty Insurance Company’s Counter-Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

XII AA01771-

AA01779 

36 [06/11/2020] Aspen Specialty Insurance Company’s 

Renewed Motion for Summary Judgment 

XIII AA01780-

AA01808 

37 [06/11/2020] Appendix to Exhibits to Aspen 

Specialty Insurance Company’s Renewed Motion 

for Summary Judgment 

XIII, 

XIV, 

XV 

AA01809-

AA02124 

38 [07/02/2020] St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Renewed Opposition to Aspen Specialty 

Insurance Company’s Renewed Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

XV AA02125-

AA02164 

39 [07/31/2020] Aspen Specialty Insurance Company’s 

Reply to St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance 

Company’s Opposition to Aspen Specialty 

Insurance Company’s Renewed Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

XV AA02165-

AA02182 



 

{05903084 / 1} 

40 [10/09/2020] Order Denying Aspen Specialty 

Insurance Company’s Renewed Motion for 

Summary Judgment 

XV AA02183-

AA02194 

41 Aspen Specialty Insurance Company’s Reservation 

of Rights Letters dated August 5, 2014 

XVI AA02195-

AA02207 

42 Aspen Specialty Insurance Company Policy of 

Insurance issued to The Restaurant Group et al, 

Policy Number CRA8XYD11 

XVI AA02208-

AA02325 

43 St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company Policy 

of Insurance issued to Premier Hotel Insurance 

Group (P2), Policy Number QK 06503290 

XVII  AA02326-

AA02387 

44 National Union Fire Insurance Company of 

Pittsburgh, PA Policy of Insurance issued to The 

Restaurant Group et al, Policy Number BE 

25414413 

XVIII AA02388-

AA02448 

 

45 Zurich American Insurance Company Policy of 

Insurance issued to Nevada Property I LLC, Policy 

Number PRA 9829242-01 

XVIII, 

XIX 

AA02449-

AA02608 

 



AA01351



AA01352



AA01353



AA01354



AA01355



AA01356



AA01357



AA01358



AA01359



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit N 

AA01360



AA01361



AA01362



AA01363



AA01364



AA01365



AA01366



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit O 

AA01367



AA01368



AA01369



AA01370



AA01371



AA01372



AA01373



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit P 

AA01374



AA01375



AA01376



AA01377



AA01378



AA01379



AA01380



AA01381



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit Q 

AA01382



AA01383



AA01384



AA01385



AA01386



AA01387



AA01388



AA01389



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit R 

AA01390



AA01391



AA01392



AA01393



AA01394



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit S 

AA01395



AA01396



AA01397



AA01398



AA01399



AA01400



AA01401



AA01402



AA01403



AA01404



AA01405



AA01406



AA01407



AA01408



AA01409



AA01410



AA01411



AA01412



AA01413



AA01414



AA01415



AA01416



AA01417



AA01418



AA01419



AA01420



AA01421



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit T 

AA01422



 

- 1 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

RTRAN 

 

 

 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
ST. PAUL FIRE & MARINE 
INSURANCE COMPANY, 
 
                    Plaintiff, 
 
vs. 
 
ASPEN SPECIALTY INSURANCE 
COMPANY, ET AL, 
 
                    Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)
) 

 
 
  CASE#:  A-17-758902-C 
 
  DEPT.  XXVI 
 
 
 

 
BEFORE THE HONORABLE GLORIA STURMAN 

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 30, 2018 

 
RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF PENDING MOTIONS 

 
 
 

APPEARANCES 
 

 

For the Plaintiff: WILLIAM C. REEVES, ESQ. 
MARC J. DEREWETZKY, ESQ. 
 

For Aspen Specialty 
Insurance Company: 
 
For National Union Fire 
Insurance Company of 
Pittsburgh PA: 

RYAN A. LOOSVELT, ESQ. 
 
 
NICHOLAS B. SALERNO, ESQ. 
JENNIFER L. KELLER, ESQ. 
 

 
 

RECORDED BY:  KERRY ESPARZA, COURT RECORDER 

AA01423



 

- 2 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

Las Vegas, Nevada, Tuesday, October 30, 2018 

 

[Case called at 11:20 a.m.] 

THE COURT:  And that is page 14.  St. Paul Fire & Marine, 

Aspen Specialty Insurance Company, 758902.  All of these and all of 

these.  And notebooks, notebooks, notebooks.  Everybody else, come on 

up.  It's nice to see everybody.  Let's see what we can get through here.  

And then I do have a question.  I need to confirm with you guys, once 

you get all your appearances, because I think there's some 

confidentiality issues that we may have.  So I want to make sure I don't 

violate whatever confidentiality agreement's out there. 

MR. REEVES:  Makes sense, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  So if we can get appearances then?  Case 

758902.  And start over here and work our way across the room. 

MR. REEVES:  All right.  Wayne Reeves, on behalf of the 

Plaintiff. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Mark Derewetzky, on behalf of the 

Plaintiff as well. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MS. KELLER:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Jennifer Keller, 

appearing pro hoc vice on behalf of National Union -- 

THE COURT:  Welcome. 

MS. KELLER:  -- and Roof Deck Entertainment. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. SALERNO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Nick Salerno, 

AA01424
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also for National Union and Marquee. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Ryan Loosvelt 

for Defendant, Aspen. 

THE COURT:  Oh, okay.  I think you're the only one who 

hadn't yet shown up previously, so welcome. 

  MR. LOOSVELT:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  All right.  So as I said, I just want to make sure I 

understand, because some of these terms are confidential, some of them 

aren't.  As far as I know, the individual policy limits of each of the 

policies; that's not confidential.  The only thing that's confidential is how 

much was paid to the underlying Plaintiff to resolve his claim, because it 

was a compromise of the jury verdict.  And so the amount paid to him is 

confidential; am I correct? 

MR. REEVES:  That -- 

THE COURT:  So I just -- 

MR. SALERNO:  That's correct, Your Honor.  And it's  -- 

THE COURT:  What do I have to avoid talking about? 

MR. SALERNO:  And the Nightclub Management Agreement 

is confidential. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  At least portions of it are. 

MR. SALERNO:  But there's -- 

MR. REEVES:  We've made -- 

MR. SALERNO:  -- nobody in court, so I think we're free to 
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talk about -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  Again -- 

MR. SALERNO:  -- this, yeah. 

THE COURT:  But there'll be a record, and I just want to make 

sure I don't say something inadvertently that means we have to seal a 

transcript. 

MR. SALERNO:  Fair enough. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you.  All right.  So we've 

got all these motions.  And we start with the -- Aspen's got a motion to 

dismiss.  Roof Deck, which is Marquee.  We've got National Union, AIG, 

and Aspen's, motion to dismiss.  I guess they're kind of overlapping.  

Then we've got a National Union motion.  And then I've got, as I said, a 

bunch of other documents that -- I think they're sealed, but we're 

hanging onto that we've kept from all of the prior appearances to make 

sure we've got them.    

So I just want to make sure, so that Ms. Shell can indicate in 

her minutes, a disposition, if any, on specifically what's on.   

So Defendant, Aspen Specialty Insurance Company's motion 

to dismiss Plaintiff St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company's 

redacted first amendment complaint.    

Defendant Roof Deck Entertainment LLC's motion to dismiss 

St. Paul Fire and Marine's first amendment complaint. 

And National Union's motion to dismiss Plaintiff's complaint. 

MR. REEVES:  That's right, Your Honor.  Three motions.  We 

truncated National Union and refer to them as AIG.  We truncated -- 

AA01426
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THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  -- Roof Deck and refer to them as Marquee, 

so -- 

THE COURT:  So does it make more sense -- rather than 

argue these one at a time, because it's basically all the same issues, 

should we just have all of the three motions argued by the respective 

parties who brought them, and then you could oppose all three of them, 

and then we could hear the rebuttal? 

MR. REEVES:  It's at your discretion. 

THE COURT:  It's pretty much -- they're all the same issues. 

MR. REEVES:  And certainly, that's one way to do it.  From 

where I sit, from Plaintiff's perspective, there's a clean division between 

insurance companies -- 

THE COURT:  The ending? 

MR. REEVES:  -- versus an operator -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  -- versus an insured.  And so for purposes of 

how we had divided it internally -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  Okay.  Certainly. 

MR. REEVES:  -- Mr. Derewetzky is going to handle the 

insurance issues.  I'm here -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  And like we said we just have to make 

sure, for Ms. Shell's purposes in Odyssey, that whatever happens, 

there's an outcome linked to each separate motion. 

MR. REEVES:  Agreed. 
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THE COURT:  But it just seemed like arguing all of the 

motions at one time, and then arguing the oppositions -- and even if it's 

different counsel arguing, I have no problem with that.  But it just 

seemed it would be easier to just argue the motions, argue the 

oppositions, and then you do the replies -- 

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor, I -- 

THE COURT:  -- rather than one and one, one and one.  It's 

just going to take forever. 

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor, I do think the issues are distinct 

enough.  It might get confusing to do that.  The Marquee issues are 

really quite different than the insurance issues.  The -- 

THE COURT:  So you you're suggesting the two insurance 

motions be argued, and the Marquee motion be argued separate? 

MR. SALERNO:  At a minimum.   

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  And there is -- 

THE COURT:  Great.  Okay.  That's what we'll do then.  

MR. SALERNO:  I mean, there are notable differences. 

THE COURT:  We will separate out the Marquee motion.  

We'll do that one on its own, because it's the issue of this entity.  The 

two insurance motions, which are Aspen and National Union -- or AIG, 

we'll do those two together.   

So who do you want to start with?  As between the insurance 

issue and the operating entity issue, does it make more sense to take one 

of those first?  I don't think that the outcome of one is dependent on 
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the -- 

MR. SALERNO:  I think it's your call.  We've got a lot of 

briefing before this Court, so I'm -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  So I'm just trying to figure it out.  I don't 

think there's anything with respect to specifically Marquee.  I mean, do 

we need to have that decided before we can get to the insurance issue? 

MR. REEVES:  No.  They're distinct and separate -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I didn't -- 

MR. REEVES:  -- and separate tracks. 

THE COURT:  -- think so.  Okay.  So I sort of think that it 

doesn't really matter which direction we take them in.  So we'll start with 

Marquee then and do that one, and then we'll move on to the insurance 

issues after that. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor.  Your Honor, this is 

similar to the prior motion.  And Your Honor, at the last motion to 

dismiss hearing, wanted to better understand the relationship -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- of the various parties.  At the time, if you 

recall, St. Paul was not acknowledging that the Nightclub Manager 

Agreement that we had attached to our papers, was the operative 

agreement.  They seem to have acknowledged that now.  So hopefully, 

we can get past what are the relationships and what is the agreement.  

Because those relationships are pretty fairly -- and in detail, set out in the 

Nightclub Management Agreement and the attached lease.   

And we also then went through in detail in these renewed 

AA01429
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papers, what those relationships are, to set that out for the Court.  And 

be happy to answer any questions.  But the crux of the argument is that 

the Nightclub Management Agreement includes subrogation waiver 

provision 1 that applies to all owner-insured policies, which St. Paul is an 

owner-insured policy, and I'll explain why.  And that the cause of action 

that St Paul's attempting to subrogate to, for expressed indemnity under 

the Nightclub Management, only applies to claims that are not 

reimbursed by insurance, which we don't have here.   

St. Paul is pursuing, under theory of subrogation, the claims 

that it paid under its policy.  So those are insurance-funded claims that 

they expressed indemnity provision, by its expressed terms does not 

apply to.  What St. Paul has now come forward and said, is that, well, 

wait a minute.  My client, Cosmo, that I'm -- or, you know, my insured 

Cosmo who I'm subrogating to, they didn't agree to that subrogation 

waiver provision.   

And so I'll address that first and separately, then the express 

indemnity aspect of that argument.  That fails at several levels.  First of 

all, the subrogation waiver provision applies to all owner policies which 

are defined as all owner-insured policies.  And so the Nightclub 

Management Agreement defines what is an owner-insured policy at 

provision 12.3.  And that includes -- I don't know if Your Honor tracked all 

that from our moving papers, because it's a little bit confusing.  But 

when you look at provision 12.2.5, which is page 63 of the Nightclub 

Management Agreement -- 

THE COURT:  Page 65? 

AA01430
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MR. SALERNO:  Page 63, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Sorry.  It took me a little while to get that.  It 

was very securely delivered in a sealed document envelope. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

MR. REEVES:  Do you have a copy of the agreement there, 

Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  It was sealed.  So, yeah, I've got it. 

MR. SALERNO:  I have an extra copy -- 

THE COURT:  I managed to -- 

MR. SALERNO:  -- if you want to reference it. 

THE COURT:  -- get it out.  No, I managed to get it out my 

sealed copy that's all in my sleeve, got sealed. 

MR. REEVES:  When was it delivered to you, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  I think it was the last time; wasn't it? 

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah.  It was probably first, Your Honor.  

There was a stipulation to seal it. 

MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  I saw that it was sealed, it just was 

unclear. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  This is as of February 2018.   

MR. REEVES:  I see. 

THE COURT:  We've kept it -- 

MR. REEVES:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- in its sealed envelope ever since. 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  So, yeah. 
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MR. SALERNO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  I mean, portions of it were excerpted, but this 

is the actual full thing.  I've opened it. 

MR. SALERNO:  Very good. 

THE COURT:  I got it. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor.   

So, page 63, provision 12.2.5.  That provision talks about the 

insurance coverage maintained by the owner-insured parties.  It says, all 

insurance coverages maintained by operators shall be primary to any 

insurance coverage maintained by any owner-insured parties.  And then 

it refers and defines that term as the owner policies.  So that is what 

defines the owner policies, as the owner-insured parties.  The owner-

insured parties is defined above, on that same page, on 12.2.3.   

And you'll see that the owner-insured parties is defined to 

include the owner, which is Nevada Restaurant, one, a related affiliate, 

the project owner, which is Cosmo.  And the landlord and the tenant 

under the lease, et cetera, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates.  So the owner-

insured parties under the express terms of the Nightclub Management 

Agreement is not just Nevada Restaurant, it's also, Cosmo, by the 

interaction of these two provisions.   

So the insurance maintained by The Cosmo is an owner's 

policy under the terms of the Nightclub Agreement, to which the 

subrogation waiver provision applies.  If there are any doubts, just by the 

definition of the parties and the relationships of them, the lease 

agreement, which is attached as Exhibit D to the Nightclub Management 
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Agreement, requires that The Cosmo, who is the landlord -- we lay this 

out in our papers -- at page 15 of Exhibit D, Your Honor, section 17.2, all 

right -- I know it's a little difficult to follow, my apology -- there's the 

insurance requirement between the landlord -- essentially between 

Cosmo and Nevada Restaurant.   

And it says that tenant will carry and maintain all insurance 

required under section 12.1 of the RMA and will cause operator to carry 

and maintain all insurance required under section 12.2.  So here, the 

tenant is required to carry the 12.1 provision, which is the Nevada 

Restaurant requirement.  Then it goes on and says, landlord covenants 

and agrees that from and after the date of delivery of the premises from 

landlord to tenant, and during the term, landlord will carry and maintain 

all insurance required under paragraph 1H.  So the landlord here, is 

Cosmo.   

If you go to paragraph 1H of the lease agreement, which is 

on page 4 of the lease, it says, landlord insurance.  And it says, all 

insurance required to be obtained by owner under section 12.1 of the 

RMA.  So you've got multiple layers where that argument fails, because 

they're within the definition of owner-insured policies, and that's owner 

policies.  And then when you go to the lease agreement, The Cosmo is 

required to maintain the insurance that Nevada Restaurant was required 

to maintain.   

So this is clearly the policy that Nevada Restaurants was 

required to procure and maintain under the Nightclub Management 

Agreement.  So despite attempting to split hairs between these various 
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provisions, their argument lacks merit.  Plus, they're claiming, as an 

intended-third-party beneficiary -- and an intended-third-party 

beneficiary is subject to the same terms and conditions to the 

contracting parties.  So it fails at multiple levels.   

Then when you get to the claim itself, beyond the 

subrogation waiver provision, under the expressed indemnity provision, 

the expressed indemnity only applies to unreimbursed losses.  And they 

again try to split that same hair there and say, but that's only as to 

policies which the owner is required to maintain.   

And I've already explained why the St. Paul policy is a policy 

that the owner is required to maintain.  So under the express terms of 

the agreement by which they're subrogating, subrogation rights have 

been waived, and the indemnity rights themselves expressly only apply 

to non-reimbursed losses, which we don't have here.   

They next try to bring a cause of action for contribution 

against Marquee, by stepping into the shoes of their insured, Cosmo.  

There's several problems with that, Your Honor.  Contribution; first of all, 

Your Honor, is not allowed in the State of Nevada when there is an 

expressed indemnity provision governing the parties' rights.  And we 

cited to the provisions in 17.245 that say that.  It's also in the case law, in 

Calloway and other cases cited, that when the parties have expressly 

contracted for indemnity rights, there is no equitable contribution right 

available.  So that's under case law and statute. 

The Uniform Contribution Act also provides that when a 

party has engaged in intentional conduct, they cannot pursue 
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contribution against another third party.  And we clearly have a situation 

here, where the verdict found that Cosmo is jointly and severally liable 

for intentional conduct.  St. Paul's tried to, again, split those hairs, and 

said, yeah, but it was for a non-delegable duty.  It was for vicarious 

liability.  There's no such exception.  And there's no such support for that 

finding.  The jury verdict clearly says they're jointly and severally liable 

for intentional conduct.  And that's a binding finding. 

THE COURT: Okay.  And that was -- 

MR. SALERNO:  In the underlying action. 

THE COURT:  The jury didn't decide that.  The Court ruled 

that.  And the jury verdict reflected that Court ruling? 

MR. REEVES:  I think it's -- 

MR. SALERNO:  I don't think so, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  I thought that was a -- 

MR. SALERNO:  They tried to get out by way of motion, 

which was denied.  But it all went to the jury, and the jury found joint 

and several liability for both negligence and intentional conduct. 

MR. REEVES:  I don't -- I'll let you speak. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay.  I'm not sure. 

MR. SALERNO:  I'm not 100 percent -- 

THE COURT:  Oh, yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- but I don't think that's -- 

THE COURT:  None of us were there, so -- 

MR. SALERNO:  -- relevant anyways.  But that's my 

understanding of what occurred.  There's a binding finding of intentional 
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conduct on the part of Cosmo, which prevents a right to contribution. 

THE COURT:  That part, I don't think, is disputed. 

MR. SALERNO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  I think my question is just, how we got there 

and if that matters. 

MR. SALERNO:  I don't think it matters. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  And I don't know why it would. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  And at a third level, Your Honor, 

contribution in Nevada requires that you extinguish a third party's 

liability for that.  And there's nothing even close that's come to that in 

this matter.  So the cause of action for expressed indemnity fails, under 

subrogation rights.  Contribution simply is not available. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you.  And who's taking that one? 

MR. REEVES:  I'll argue, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  Can you hear me from here  -- 

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MR. REEVES:  -- or do you want me to come -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  No problem. 

MR. REEVES:  All right.  Our argument is quite simple.  The 

Cosmopolitan is not a party to this agreement.  Not a signatory.  And so 

that's where everything flows from that.  And that's the sleight of hand.  
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That's why Counsel had to walk you through all these different parts and 

provisions, and things like that, because if you go to page 1 -- and we 

provided the excerpt -- 

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. REEVES:  -- different times, and you have the whole 

agreement in front of you.  And obviously, we had invited you to review 

the agreement.  And bear in mind, this is a pre-answer motion.  And it 

feels a lot like a motion for summary judgment, relative to what's going 

on here. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  And we didn't actually talk about that, so 

we'll give Counsel a chance to address.  Just, that was a question.  I 

mean, because when we start with Nevada law on motions to dismiss, 

somebody else earlier -- you may have been in here -- talked about the 

distinction between federal laws on motion to dismiss and state law on 

motion to dismiss, and they vary, at this time.  It may change under the 

new rules, but at this time, very different. 

MR. REEVES:  Understood.  And when we're getting into all 

these things outside of the pleadings -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  -- and where we're not dignifying the 

pleadings, we assume the truth of them.  We assume the veracity of the 

allegations.  It gets very cumbersome.  You've got --  

THE COURT:    And one of the initial arguments was, you 

haven't given us all the entire agreements, so how can your complaint 

go forward, because you don't even have the agreements attached. 
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MR. REEVES:  Well -- 

THE COURT:  So we had them in their sealed form by 

stipulation of the parties, both of the entire agreements. 

MR. REEVES:  Agreed. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  Agreed. 

THE COURT:  So we got it. 

MR. REEVES:  And so you'll see on the face page of the 

agreement, it'll identify the parties.  You won't see Cosmopolitan there.  

And that is the driver of everything, because if Cosmopolitan is not a 

party to this agreement, then why are we talking about obligations that it 

owes.  It may be beneficiary of things, under this agreement, and the 

indemnity provision, in particular.  But as to duties and obligations that it 

brings, it owes, it's not present.   

And so that's why Counsel is walking you through all these 

different provisions, because he's trying to cobble together a scenario 

where Cosmopolitan, who is a silent party to all this, relative to the trial, 

certainly non-delegable duty.  Certainly heard that.  And certainly, the 

Court reached that issue. 

THE COURT:  And as we're talking about parties, can we 

talk -- maybe clarify one other thing?  Because -- 

MR. REEVES:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  -- for example, affidavits; they're all signed by 

Tao (phonetic), but whoever is the representative --  

MR. REEVES:  It's a managing member. 
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THE COURT:  -- Tao.  On the management.  So again just to 

clarify -- 

MR. REEVES:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  That's why they're in here, and why we're 

seeing affidavits signed by some executive, a Tao.   

MR. REEVES:  Tao speaks to Marquee speaks to the operator. 

That's accurate, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  So Tao doesn't speak to Cosmopolitan.  It has 

a separate controlling group.   

THE COURT:  But even though Tao doesn't appear anywhere 

on here, technically, they are -- because you're saying, well, Cosmo is 

not anywhere on this document? 

MR. REEVES:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  But since Tao is purporting to have all 

the information for Roof Deck, Roof Deck -- 

MR. REEVES:  Roof Deck, being Marquee. 

THE COURT:  -- is Marquee. 

MR. REEVES:  Not Cosmopolitan.  That's where -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Roof Deck is Marquee and also, 

ultimately, Tao. 

MR. REEVES:  Correct. 

THE COURT:  That's how we get there. 

MR. REEVES:  Marquee, Roof Deck, and Tao, we can almost 

collapse them all together.  Cosmopolitan being completely separate. 
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THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  And so that's the thrust of everything.  We're 

not distancing ourself from the agreement.  We found it odd that we're 

dealing with it, in terms of introduction of it, vis-a-vis, a pre-answer 

motion.  And so for purposes of what we're doing here, respectfully, pre-

answer motion, this is a motion for summary judgment, when we're 

going -- poring through agreement.  Set that issue to the side.  If we're 

going to introduce the agreement and we're going to consider it, core 

issue; Cosmopolitan is not a party to it.  It is a signatory at the end where 

it says, we will be bound as to a few provisions.  And that's on -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  -- page -- one of the things -- the lease is not 

signed, you'll note, that Counsel relies on, so it's -- that's a little 

cumbersome.  This thing is paginated at the bottom -- 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. REEVES:  -- 89.   

THE COURT:  89? 

MR. REEVES:  89.   

THE COURT:  Is 89 --  I think it's page 90 -- Bates-stamped 

down in the lower -- 

MR. REEVES:  See, I don't have a Bates-stamped copy. 

THE COURT:  -- right-hand -- 

MR. REEVES:  So there, in -- 

THE COURT:  -- corner. 

MR. REEVES:  -- and of itself, creates a [indiscernible] and 
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that's why I wanted to ask you -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  It's 89. 

MR. REEVES:  -- because I don't have a Bates-stamped copy.  

So you're looking at something I don't have. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Page 89 of the agreement itself. 

MR. REEVES:  Page 89 of the agreement. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  It's the project owner in that paragraph. 

MR. REEVES:  Fair enough.  And I don't mean to suggest that 

you're looking at something that isn't the same as mine, but I'm not able 

to refer you to Bates stamp. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  But you will see, we're not -- Cosmopolitan, 

it's not a signatory.  Didn't obligate itself to the insurance requirements, 

the waiver of subrogation.  And so if they're outside of the agreement, 

how on earth are we going to bind them to it?  And so, respectfully, 

that's  the thrust of the argument.  We don't need to get, frankly, any 

more complex than that. 

Contribution, well, if we're not a party to the agreement, then 

we get contribution.  So either we're in, relative to enforcing the 

expressed indemnity, or we don't get to enforce the expressed indemnity 

and then we get contribution.  It's kind of an either/or scenario.  We pled 

in the alternative, which you do when you're at the pleading stage, so -- 

THE COURT:  And so counsel's argument that you don't get 

express indemnity -- and you pled that but you're not going to get it -- so 

you can't -- obviously then, you can't claim contribution because you're 
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trying -- at least that's what I understand, but -- 

MR. REEVES:  If I don't get the indemnity, I get the 

contribution. 

THE COURT:  It seemed like he -- 

MR. REEVES:  So either I get the indemnity -- 

THE COURT:  -- was arguing the opposite. 

MR. REEVES:  -- or I get the contribution.  He's trying to say I 

don't get either. 

THE COURT:  Exactly.  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  Understood.  Relative to alternate pleading, 

relative to the ability to plead in almost the disjunctive, what we've done 

here is we seek to enforce the indemnity as a third-party beneficiary of it, 

the terms of it, alternatively, contribution.  So if we don't get the benefit 

of enforcing it, if we're held to be outside of the agreement so we don't 

get the benefit of the indemnity, then we want contribution.  

And bear in mind, Your Honor, and this is just to provide 

context, how did we get here?  One way that we got here is, Cosmo and 

Marquee were jointly defended, same lawyer.  And there's a lot of side 

issues relative to that.  Same lawyer -- they never tested one another.  

They never looked to each other and said, well, what portion is yours 

versus what portion is mine?  I represent to this Court that Cosmo was 

the silent one in all this, didn't have a footprint there, wasn't doing 

anything.  It was Marquee that was running the show. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. REEVES:  Running the operation. 
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THE COURT:  And that was my question about, who actually 

found, and what did they find? 

MR. REEVES:  Who actually what, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  Who actually made the finding, and what did 

they actually find -- 

MR. REEVES:  There was no --- 

THE COURT:  -- with respect to  

MR. REEVES:  -- findings between them. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Between the --  

MR. REEVES:  And that's what we're trying to do. 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  See, this was joint defense, one lawyer, never 

tested.  So of course we're entitled to go and test the proportionate share 

between them, and I suggest to you, it's going to be zero to Cosmo and a 

hundred percent to Marquee. 

THE COURT:  So that's, then, my next question. 

MR. REEVES:  Yes, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Because as I said, I forgot to talk to Mr. Salerno 

about this.  Which is, standard on a motion to dismiss Buzz Stew, any 

likelihood that you can find the facts?  What is there factual, or is this just 

entirely, purely legal? 

MR. REEVES:  No.  It's -- 

THE COURT:  I mean, is there really -- 

MR. REEVES:  -- certainly factual. 

THE COURT:  -- any discovery -- 
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MR. REEVES:  It was never tested. 

THE COURT:  -- to be done?   

MR. REEVES:  It was never tested in the underlying case. 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. REEVES:  I'm representing to you that Cosmopolitan was 

the silent one, didn't have a presence there.  Counsel wants to say 

they're joint and several.  That begs the question.  To be joint and 

several doesn't bear out your internal exposures between two parties 

that are held joint and several. So yes, factual issues predominate 

relative to -- 

THE COURT:  Is that only contribution, or would there also be 

factual issues to determine; is it an enforceable indemnity agreement, 

which is one result?  Or is that purely legal? 

MR. REEVES:  The enforceability -- 

THE COURT:  The contribution, it seems like, would be the 

stature. 

MR. REEVES:  -- whether the parties are bound by it, legal.  

The net effect of being bound it, factual. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  So on the front end, in terms of whether it's in 

play, that's a legal issue. 

THE COURT:  But at this point, do we determine -- you can 

proceed on your contribution claim, you're not going to be able to 

proceed on your indemnity claim because, you know, whatever.  The 

Court makes that finding.  That's seems to me like that would be a purely 
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legal finding, expressed indemnity -- 

MR. REEVES:  Right.  To the extent this Court held that 

Cosmopolitan doesn't get the benefit to enforce it, I suppose that would 

be a legal issue.  To the extent this Court held that the indemnity 

provision does not respond to the claims, that's factual. 

THE COURT:  Because, again, I'm trying to get to, what if any 

discovery is there on that issue, for the Court to determine between 

enforceable expressed indemnity versus contribution.  Are there factual 

issues there? 

MR. REEVES:  yes.  Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  So we would first go to the trial transcripts and 

ascertain what was litigated relative to that.  Those transcripts not being 

before this Court, the evidence.  My suspicion is, because of a joint 

defense, that the respective roles of the parties was never developed in 

the underlying case. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  So we would depose representatives from 

Marquee to confirm they were in sole control, that they dictated 

everything, that they didn't look to Cosmopolitan relative to their 

operation of the club. With that information, then we would come to this 

Court and say, with this factual information, we're now making our 

prima facie showing as to why we're entitled to indemnity, so -- 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. REEVES:  -- to answer your question. 
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THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Sorry about that.  We didn't talk about -- this is 

a motion to dismiss, so -- 

MR. SALERNO:  Sure.  Your Honor, Counsel attempts to 

compilate several legal concepts.  So I'll try to make these clear.  When 

they say they're not a party to the contract and then they say they signed 

it, I think that's somewhat tongue-in-cheek.  At page 89 of the Nightclub 

Management Agreement, they are the project owner.  The project owner 

is defined throughout this agreement, and so are their insurance 

requirements and the relationship to those, as I went through. 

THE COURT:  But there's -- project owner, I appreciate, and 

it's defined all the way through.  But they didn't agree to the whole 

contract.  They only agreed to put -- acknowledged and agreed to be 

bound, solely with respect to the provisions of blah, blah, blah. 

MR. SALERNO:  They agreed to procure the insurance 

required under this agreement.  And that's why we went through the 

lease requirements, which are attached and referenced to this 

agreement.  And that's why we're here, because of the insurance they 

procured.  They claimed it's not subject to the subrogation requirements 

of this agreement.  Which, under the requirements of this agreement, 

require that subrogation rights are waived.  And these are pure legal 

issues.   

This is not a motion for summary judgment.  It's a motion to 

dismiss.  We've cited the legal authority of why it's appropriate when a 
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complaint fails to include, for the second time, the actual operative 

agreement that they're basing their subrogation right on.  We can come 

forward with that agreement, and that's what we've done.  And Your 

Honor can and should decide these types of legal issues up front, to 

avoid the waste of resources that it would cost to develop discovery on 

simply irrelevant issues.  And that's why we're bringing it forward now.   

To say that they're entitled to test the allocation because it 

wasn't done in the underlying action, is simply wrong.  Under this 

agreement, the allocation of liability is only responsible to the extent it's 

not reimbursed by insurance.  That's what these parties contracted for.  

So they're not entitled to test it now, because it was all paid by 

insurance.  The parties, by agreement, only agreed to allocate liability in 

a certain way if it wasn't paid by insurance.  And that's the whole point 

here.   

And so the Uniform Contribution Act and the Calloway 

decision, the case law in Nevada that says it's not one or the other.  It's 

not expressed indemnity, and then if I'm wrong for some reason and it 

fails because it doesn't apply, I get to do contribution; it's we contracted 

for the allocation of liability in a certain way, in an express agreement, 

under the Nightclub Management Agreement here.  And under this 

express indemnity provision, we contracted and provided for it.  We 

don't get the other one, too, in case it doesn't apply, or fails.  That's not 

how it works.   

So if you look at the Calloway decision, it says that, and in 

the other cases we cited, and you look at the Uniform Contribution Act, it 
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says that.  When they've contracted for how to allocate, it's the contract 

that applies.  You don't get the contribution claim when that fails 

because of the manner in which it was allocated.  That's what we have 

here.   

Here, the parties expressly agreed that they would allocate it 

in a certain way, and the key to that is that it had to not be reimbursed by 

insurance.  And otherwise, everybody walks away.  And so whether you 

think they're a party to the agreement because of the way the insurance 

was set up and the way it references a project owner, and there's owner-

insured policies, is really not important.  Because they're claiming 

they're coming forward as a beneficiary.  Well, as a beneficiary, they 

don't obtain greater rights.  They're still stepping into the contract to 

obtain the rights bargained for between the contracting parties.  So they 

don't obtain greater rights than the contracting parties because they're 

coming in as a third party beneficiary.  That's black letter law in Nevada.   

So, Your Honor, it's just not an either-or thing.  And it's 

appropriate for motion-to-dismiss matters, because this should've been 

pled in the complaint.  And because it wasn't, it's before Your Honor 

now.  So we would ask that we take the time to sort out these important 

legal distinctions that had to be addressed as a threshold matter before 

they can move forward.  And try to -- what they're saying relitigate the 

underlying case?  They want to call everybody and relitigate contribution 

and indemnity when those rights have been waived?   

THE COURT:  Okay.  So your position would be that this is 

purely legal, whether we call this a motion to dismiss or a motion for 
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summary judgment? 

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  Ultimately, it's a purely legal issue.  There is 

nothing to be done.  I mean, the Court either says, you've got a claim 

under express indemnity because you're bound by this contract, or 

you're not bound by this contract.  You're not a party.  You didn't sign it, 

saying you would be bound by those provisions, so you're not bound.  

Therefore, you're claimant's contribution, wouldn't you then have -- 

MR. SALERNO:  Well, no.  It's not -- 

THE COURT:  -- to do discovery? 

MR. SALERNO: -- that you're not bound, they're claiming 

beneficiary status then.  So they obtain no greater rights.  They are 

claiming entitlement to express indemnity, because they're referenced in 

the indemnity provision.  So they're bound by what that indemnity 

provides for.  And they don't also get contribution when that indemnity 

doesn't provide for it, because that's what they contracted for.  And 

these are pure legal issues.   

There's no statement of undisputed facts or disputed facts 

here for Your Honor to decide and weigh.  It's simply, this is the contract.  

And what are the parties' legal standings under these contracts and 

under the law when it comes to contribution, and under the law when it 

comes to subrogation waiver? 

THE COURT:  Thanks. 

MR. REEVES:  Briefly respond, Your Honor? 

THE COURT:  No.  I mean -- no.  
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MR. SALERNO:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  So now we have the other issues which are the 

St. Paul and the Aspen -- wait a minute -- the Aspen and the AIG 

motions.  So these are the insurance motions.  Who's going to go first, 

AIG? 

MS. KELLER:  Your Honor, if we could?  I'd like to speak on 

behalf of National Union. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. KELLER:  So what Plaintiff is asking the Court to do here 

is create judge-made law in Nevada, since the Nevada Supreme Court 

has not recognized equitable subrogation between insurers.  And even 

the jurisdictions that do, like California, have never recognized a right to 

equitable subrogation as between excess carriers in different towers.  In 

other words, excess carriers standing on the same footing.  The Plaintiff 

knows this, and so it's now asserting that its coverage is excess to that 

which we've provided.  Because it wants to say, if our coverage is 

excess, then we have the same right to go after you, that, say, in 

California, an excess would have to go after a primary. 

But it's not.  It's not.  They are both excess in different 

towers.  And the Marquee tower, Aspen was primary, National Union is 

excess.  The Cosmopolitan tower, Zurich is primary, St. Paul is excess.  

And all the Court has to do is look at the fact that Cosmo was a named 

insured under the St. Paul policy, and Marquee was the named insured 

under National Union.   

There's no court anywhere, that's held that those excess 
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carriers can go after one another for subrogation.  There just isn't.  So 

what the Court is being asked to do is make two big leaps.  One, to 

establish the principle that the Nevada Supreme Court has not, and they 

can only find one case to cite to the Court, an unpublished opinion -- not 

of the 9th Circuit, but of a district court here in Nevada -- which seemed 

to recognize the right of equitable contribution, but not between excess 

carriers.   

In that case, as the Court can see, in California -- and in fact 

the district court here cited a California case on it, the Fireman's Fund 

case -- it was an excess carrier asking for equitable subrogation from a 

primary.  And you can see why that is, the primary essentially can hold 

excess carriers hostage, but not the other way around when it comes to 

settlement, so -- but that's been the rule.  That's been the rule 

nationwide.  They can't cite you one case standing for the proposition 

that they're asking the Court to do now.   

And even the one case they cite, while it seems to support 

the right of equitable subrogation at least, if an excess is going after a 

primary it puts the kibosh on their other claim for contractual 

subrogation -- for conventional subrogation.  The Court says, no, that's 

not recognized.  And they don't like that part, so they say, well, the Court 

should ignore that part.  So based on an unpublished decision of a 

district court citing California law, they're asking this Court to blaze this 

new path.  It seems to me that in a case like this where they're asking for 

two bodies of judgment law, it shouldn't be the trail court doing it.   

Since they haven't stated a claim that is currently cognizable 
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under Nevada Law, I think this Court should grant our motion.  And then, 

if the Nevada Supreme Court wants to establish that new right of 

equitable subrogation between insurers, it can do so.  And it could also 

consider, at the same time, whether it will become the only court in the 

land to allow equitable subrogation between excess carriers in separate 

towers with coextensive responsibilities.  It should not be for this Court 

to do it.  Plaintiff simply has not gotten there.  And it is consistently 

asking this Court to make these leaps.  Now, this is, of course, purely a 

question of law.  If the -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, what I don't understand is, is if you 

and Mr. Salerno are both representing National Union and Marquee, 

how are you doing that? 

MS. KELLER:  They have -- 

THE COURT:  Because it seems to me, and this is Mr. 

Salerno's argument, is that these are totally separate legal theories. 

MS. KELLER:  They're separate legal theories, but they're not 

in conflict with one another. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. KELLER:  Marquee has not suffered a loss, neither has 

Cosmo, because they were compensated by insurance.  So they have no 

underlying bad faith action against the carriers.  The carriers paid the 

money.  They're not out anything.  So we're not in conflict.  But there 

were separate theories pled by Plaintiff.  And we think, as a matter of 

law, those theories fail.  And it is a matter of law for this Court to decide.  

If Counsel wants to continue to argue that they're excess, Counsel 
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should, at minimum, be required to give this Court a copy of its proxy, 

which it keeps hiding.   

And the reason that it hasn't produced it -- I think the 

inference is clear, that if it does produce it, that'll be the end of the case.  

Because it will clearly show that it is excess to Zurich in the 

Cosmopolitan tower, not standing above National Union in the Marquee 

tower.  And we've diagrammed that on page 10 of our motion to 

dismiss.  It isn't refuted.  And in a statement, a legal conclusion in the 

complaint doesn't bind this Court.  If it were a factual assertion, it would.  

But it's a legal conclusion, whether somebody is excess to another 

carrier, and the Court decides that by looking at the policies.  That's how 

the Court always decides that.   

THE COURT:  Well, how do I -- 

MS. KELLER:  So I think -- 

THE COURT:  -- decide it in your client's favor then, when I 

haven't seen a policy, and I don't know if you're right or you're wrong? 

MS. KELLER:  Well, we have provided ours.  Now, I think the 

Defendant should be required to provide its own.  Because the reason 

that they haven't is because the case would fail.  This Court should not 

be expending a huge amount of judicial resources on a case where the 

threshold issue could kill the case.   

THE COURT:  Right.  But my -- 

MS. KELLER:  Because it's a legal issue. 

THE COURT:  -- question is, don't -- I mean, how can I do this 

on a motion to dismiss?  Don't I have to say, put them to test your 
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theory, that, you know, you're -- produce sure policy and show us where 

it is clear that you're not excess in The Cosmo tower? 

MS. KELLER:  Then I think a simple way to do that would be, 

just continue this motion to dismiss, order the Plaintiffs to provide a 

copy of the policy so the Court can make that determination.  Because 

otherwise, what happens is, all this litigation is kicked up for God knows 

how long, when it should be probably aborted at this stage.  And if not 

aborted, it should be deferred to the Nevada Supreme Court to decide. 

THE COURT:  Right.  And again, I understand that.  This is 

why again, on a motion to dismiss standard in Nevada that we have as it 

currently stands, what is there to be litigated versus what is just purely 

an issue of law?  I mean, what would we -- if we don't grant this as a 

motion to dismiss, you always have the right to bring a summary 

judgment motion at a later date.  I mean, that's always been the law.  I 

mean, denying a motion to dismiss doesn't mean there isn't going to 

ultimately be no facts out there that can support their case and they lose 

as a matter of law in a summary judgment. 

MS. KELLER:  That's true. 

THE COURT:  So -- 

MS. KELLER:  We could proceed with litigation, and proceed 

to incur expense, and proceed to use up Court's resources.  And then the 

Court could grant a summary judgment motion, and then it will go to the 

Nevada Supreme Court. 

THE COURT:  But -- 

MS. KELLER:  But there isn't any real reason to do that when 
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this really is a pure question of law. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.   

Now, yeah, ask. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  A lot it applies to Aspen as well, that 

Aspen's a primary.  But in addition to these not being recognized as 

causes of action in Nevada State Court here, it is purely questionable.  

And that's what Your Honor keeps saying as to what Aspen's policy 

limits are.  And that's really what a lot of the claims are based on.  So 

setting aside that these aren't recognized in Nevada, you'd be making 

judge-made law.  

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Outside of that, it's all based on largely 

whether or not Aspen refused settlements within policy limits.  And the 

law's pretty clear on how each occurrence, when it applies in the CGL 

coverage, that that's the limit.  There's been one occurrence here.  St. 

Paul has not argued that there's been two occurrences.  They just argue 

that there's two injuries.  There's a bodily injury and then there's a false 

advertising, because of the false imprisonment claim falls under there.  

That's not how policies are construed, and that's not the purpose of this 

policy.  Each occurrence, the limit is $1 million, regardless of the amount 

of injuries and those things that fall under that CGL coverage.   

And we think the law is pretty clear.  And we do believe that 

is a purely legal question.  And based on that, in addition to the other 

things that the claims do fail, it's Aspen because it's largely what they're 

all based on, if not -- 
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THE COURT:  So we've got the issue on, was Aspen really 

exposed to one million or two million?  It may be a purely legal question 

in the end.  But the issue about, were there opportunities to settle this 

thing within policy limits? 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Well, that's -- 

THE COURT:  Do we have to do discovery on, were there 

opportunities to settle, before we decide, was it one or two? 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Well, whether there's one or two, is a legal 

question based on the policy and based on the case law. 

THE COURT:  But doesn't that control whether or not it was 

reasonable?  Like, say you got an offer -- this is hypothetically speaking, I 

don't know anything about this case, if another judge tried this thing.  So 

hypothetically speaking, maybe there was an offer to settle for 

$1,999,000. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Well, there was an offer, and it's alleged 

that there was an offer to settle for one and a half million. 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  But nothing within Aspen's actual -- 

THE COURT:  There -- one. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  -- policy limits.  And that's the issue here.  

And this is what magically appeared in the amended complaint that was 

absent in the first complaint.  They were talking about the $26 

million -- the 1 million primary and the 25 million excess that was made.  

And then we filed a motion that Your Honor ordered amendment.  And 

then they saw it.  Wait, we've got to come up with something else.  And 
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that's when this whole theory of aggregate limits apply.   

But that is a legal question.  That is not a factual one.  It's a 

legal determination Your Honor can and should make.  Because the law 

is pretty clear that the $1-million-occurrence limit applies.  And if that is 

true, as we believe the case law shows, then there is no failure to settle 

within policy limits, because there is no fact, alleged or otherwise, that 

there was a settlement offer within that $1 million.  And that's why this 

aggregate-limit theory has appeared in the second round.  And, you 

know -- so -- 

THE COURT:  And so need -- again, motion to dismiss stage 

where the question is, is there anything they could possibly go out there 

and discover on any legal theory -- 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Well -- 

THE COURT:  -- that might give rise to a potential for 

recovery?  And ultimately, you may be right, and summary judgment is 

appropriate. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  But -- 

THE COURT:  But -- 

MR. LOOSVELT:  So -- 

THE COURT:  So you're saying at this point with -- 

MR. LOOSVELT:  $1 million -- 

THE COURT:  -- your client, no. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  -- is the policy limit is illegal question. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  There is no fact alleged that there is a 
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settlement offer within that $1 million.  So that can be determined, yes. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  Thank you. 

MS. KELLER:  And Your Honor, could I just add one thing -- 

THE COURT:  Sure. 

MS. KELLER:  -- to clarify -- 

THE COURT:  And then -- well --  

MS. KELLER:  The complaint does plead that National Union 

insures Marquee as its named insured, and that St. Paul insures Cosmo 

as its named insured on an excess policy.  So the complaint does 

establish the two towers right there, even without the Court seeing the 

policy. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay, thanks.  Thanks.   Thanks for 

confirming.  Now Mr. Derewetzky. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Thank you, Your Honor.  When Mr. 

Salerno was arguing the Marquee motion, he cited the management 

agreement.  And one of the provisions he cited was 12.2.5 on page 63.   

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  And I may be mistaken, but I think this 

goes to the heart of the question that Counsel just raised about who is 

excess to whom, because this provision states, all insurance coverages 

maintained by operator shall be primary to insurance coverage 

maintained by owner.  Cosmo, owner.  Marquee, operator.  Our 

insurance, whatever that insurance is, whoever it insures; excess to their 

insurance. 

THE COURT:  But don't we have to first determine whether or 
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not your client's bound by this agreement?  Because Mr. Salerno was 

already -- I mean -- the argument is that they're not bound.  That they 

expressly, in their acceptance provisions, said nothing in paragraph 12.  

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Whether who's bound by it? 

THE COURT:  Back here on the signature page, it's Cosmo -- 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I think the question, Your Honor, is 

whether Marquee is bound by it, because -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- this is a provision that deals with 

insurance that's going to benefit Marquee.   

THE COURT:  So then when we get -- for the purposes 

between Marquee and St. Paul, if the argument is, wait a minute, we 

might still have a cause of action here because when Cosmo signed, they 

said, very specifically in there and cherry-picked the sections which they 

agreed to be bound by.  Their signature line is really specific and really 

limited.  So therefore, Mr. Salerno's argument's going to fail because the 

owner never agreed to be bound by section 12. 

MR. REEVES:  But Marquee did, and the key is, Marquee is 

the signatory to it.  Marquee agreed its - 

THE COURT:  Okay.  But --  

MR. REEVES:  -- coverage is primary -- 

THE COURT:  Okay, yeah.   

MR. REEVES:  -- Marquee. 

THE COURT:  So that's what I'm trying to --- 

MR. REEVES:  Yes. 
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THE COURT:  -- get to.  So that does not defeat your 

argument because Counsel has said, look, it is separate towers.  Very 

clearly, within the policies, the language of the policies is going to say, 

we assume.  Nobody's seen your policy, so we don't know.  But the 

policy is going to say, it is excess.  And so therefore, there's two 

separate towers.  And that's the legal theory that's out there, which is, 

when you've got separate towers, can you subrogate?   

Your point being, it doesn't matter if we were not signatories 

to the insurance section; the operator was.  And the operator, being 

Marquee, says, right in there, any other insurance is going to be excess.  

We're up front.  We're number one.  Anything else, we don't care.  That's 

between them and their insurance carrier whether they're excess or not.  

That's between us.  It's been, our insurance carriers and their insurance 

carriers we agreed will be excess.  It doesn't matter. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Will be excess? 

THE COURT:  Correct.  Exactly. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  A bit important.  That Marquee specifically 

says, we don't care what -- that's between Cosmo and its insurance 

carriers, who's excessive and who's primary.  We don't care.  That 

doesn't matter to us.  Always, as between us and them, we're going to 

be primary.  They're going to be excess. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Yes.  And -- 

THE COURT:  They simply said that.  It doesn't matter if your 

clients signed on that or not. 
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MR. DEREWETZKY:  And we addressed this issue, I think at 

length, in our brief, Your Honor.  And there are other reasons why we 

argue that we're excess and they're primary.  But I'd like to take a minute 

to address -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- the threshold issue -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- of whether there can be a claim for 

subrogation under these circumstances.  Assuming that we prevail on 

the argument that we're excess, Counsel has acknowledged that there 

are cases where excess carriers subrogate against primary carriers.  And 

that would be our situation here.  There isn't a specific case by the 

Nevada Supreme Court under those facts.   

But we lay out in our briefing, at length, the history of 

subrogation in the State of Nevada, starting with a case in 1915, called 

Laffranchini v. Clark, at 39 Nevada 48, which says, subrogation is simply 

a means by which equity works out justice between man and man.  It is a 

remedy which equity seizes upon in order to accomplish what is just and 

fair as between the parties; and the courts incline rather to extend than 

restrict the principle, and the doctrine has been steadily growing and 

expanding in importance.  This is 1915, Your Honor.   

And the court went on to say, subrogation applies to a great 

variety of cases, and is broad enough to include every instance in which 

one party pays a debt for which another party is primarily liable.  Our 

argument here, Your Honor, is that we are paying it.  We have paid a 
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debt for which National Union is primarily liable. And for which -- well, 

and for which National Union is primarily liable.  This has been the law 

in the State of Nevada for over 100 years.  And if there's any question 

about that, you know, cases that were decided in 2010 hold the same.   

The court has expressly stated the district courts have full 

discretion to fashion and grant equitable remedies.  You have the 

authority to do this, even if no other court in Nevada has ever done it.  

But there have been equitable subrogation cases in Nevada for years.  

We cite, in our brief -- and I have to mention this because Counsel raised 

the issue of the Maxwell decision.   As Counsel noted, there are recent 

federal trial court decisions which have enforced the right of equitable 

subrogation in the insurance context, in this situation; excess vs. 

primary, and those are the Colony cases.  There are two of them.  I refer 

to them as "Colony 1" and "Colony 2".  In one of the decisions, the court 

rejected the claim of contractual subrogation based on Maxwell.   

And let me go back to the Canfora case.  The Canfora case 

was a contractual subrogation case, in the context of medical benefits, 

where insurer for the employer compensated the injured insured.  Who 

then went and sued the tortfeasor, got a big recovery.  And the insurer 

wanted to get the amount back of their medical lien.   

The beneficiary cited Maxwell for the proposition that you 

don't have the right to contractual indemnity.  And here's what the 

Nevada Supreme Court said about Maxwell in the Canfora case, we have 

previously prohibited an insurer from asserting a subrogation lien 

against medical payments of its insured as a matter of public policy.  In 
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Maxwell v. Allstate Insurance, we were concerned about the injured 

party recovering less than their full damages.  However, we have held 

that where an insured receives a full and total recovery, Maxwell and its 

public policy concerns are inapplicable. 

In this case, there is no dispute that the insureds, Marquee 

and Cosmo, have been fully protected.  They are -- benefits were paid on 

their behalf.  Certainly, Maxwell does not apply under these 

circumstances.  And the federal district court cases are well reasoned 

that equitable subrogation applies, and there's no reason not to extend 

that to contractual subrogation.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  So Counsel's argument that we really 

can't know until we've seen your policy, which we don't have, is what?  

Because of your argument that it doesn't matter?  Because of 12.2.5, it's 

always going to be excess? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Counsel said they need the policy, to 

show that we insured Cosmo, and that we were excess to the Zurich 

policy.  Your Honor said that that was the case, based on what you read.  

What do we need the policy for?  Plus, we have the management 

agreement that says that we're excess regardless.   

THE COURT:  So then what?  What is there to discover?  

Because aren't you essentially saying, purely legal issue. Go ahead and 

decide it today.  We don't need to do anything.  It's purely legal.  Give 

everybody the contracts that are here.  I guess, technically outside the 

scope of the initial pleading.  So I'm just trying to figure out; what's left?  

What are we going to do under a Buzz Stew analysis?  What are we 
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going to do? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  In terms, Your Honor, of equitable 

subrogation, there is a dispute, in the papers in the case, about who has 

the superior equities.   

THE COURT:  Right.  And this is the whole thing we talked 

about very early on, which is, well, who actually made that 

determination that it was joint and several?  I thought it was, the court 

instructed the jury.  I could be wrong.  Like I said, none of us were there.  

Somebody else tried this case.  So I may be wrong about my 

understanding of how the jury got to -- because how do you get a jury to 

decide what joint and several is? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I'm -- 

THE COURT:  How would a jury understand? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I don't have that information at hand, 

Your Honor.  But I do know -- 

THE COURT:  So that's something we have to discover. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Yes.  But I do know that there are 

allegations in the complaint, and there's argument in the papers, about 

superior equities.  And at least in the very recently decided, again, 

federal district court opinion, Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland 

vs. Travelers Casualty, which is at 2018 Westlaw 4550397, the court said 

it could not make a determination on summary judgment as to who has 

the superior equities because it involves questions of fact and questions 

of disputed fact.   

So at the very minimum, if the cause of action for equitable 
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contribution survives, the case must go forward to determine, at a 

minimum, who had the superior equities. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Got it.  Thank you. 

MS. KELLER:  Your Honor, the --   

THE COURT:   Yes? 

MS. KELLER:  The argument that somehow the lease 

agreement could control who is excess, fails.  It's a matter of black letter 

law that in actions between insurers, regarding priority of coverage 

issues such as here, courts have found the provisions of an insurance 

policy control, over the terms in an insured's contract.  And that's -- we 

cited the Travelers Casualty Surety Company vs. American Equity 

Insurance Company, 93 Cal. App. 4th 1142.  And we cited a couple of 

other cases for that proposition.  You simply can't take an insurance 

policy and convert it into a different kind of policy via a lease agreement 

with someone else.  You can't do it.  And so that fails.   

So we're back to, Plaintiff pled that they insure Cosmo as the 

named insured, and that they have an excess policy.  And they pled that 

National Union insures Marquee as its named insured, excess policy.  So 

you have two towers, and you have two excess carriers going after each 

other.  The idea that we've had equitable subrogation in Nevada for 

years, not between insurance companies ever.  It's always a third party 

tortfeasor and the insurance company.   

So it's a completely different situation.  It really would open 

up, I think, the courts, to endless food fights between excess carriers.  

Everybody in every tower going after every other carrier, saying, well, 
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you're the reason it didn't settle.  No, you are.  And if somebody is going 

to do that, again, it should be the Nevada Supreme Court.   

And one reason is, the same reason that whenever you have 

judge-made law, you want it to be done by the highest court, because 

they can get briefing from everyone.  Including, many amici curiae can 

come in and say, we've researched this extensively and here's what 

we've found.  They're in a position to really seriously consider the pros 

and cons from everybody who might have an interest in it, because it 

would be making new policy.  It's a policy decision.   

And in this case, for the Court to grant our motion to dismiss 

and defer that to the Nevada Supreme Court, would make sense for 

another reason.  There's no one here who's going to be injured in the 

interim.  These are two insurance carriers fighting it out.  There's not a 

paraplegic person who's going without medical care. We're not in a 

situation where witnesses could die or memories fade.  This is a 

situation that is a legal issue only.   

And so that's another reason why I think the fact that Plaintiff 

has not been able to state a claim under current Nevada law, means that 

we should prevail. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.   

Aspen? 

MR. LOOSVELT:  There was no opposition that the one-

million limit applies.  And that's notable, because that's -- even if we 

were going to recognize these new causes of action, that's failed to all 

the claims.  So the initial complaint stated equitable subrogation, and 
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then the amended complaint just did away with equitable.  It sounds like 

that's what the focus is, or maybe there being -- alleging an alternative.  

It's hard to tell.  But under either, they fail because of the purely legal 

question Your Honor cold make, based on the facts and what the 

settlement offers were.  And they were not within the policy limits.   

Even where Your Honor is going to recognize an equitable 

subrogation claim, just looking at some of the elements, they're just 

lacking here.  And this is, it's an equitable thing.  It's to do equity and, 

you know, do fairness to people.  And this is rights emanating from the 

insured.  And one of the prominent elements is that the insured suffered 

a loss.  And they're trying to subrogate it to that loss.  But the insured 

here didn't suffer a loss.  The insured was fully indemnified in the post-

verdict settlement.  Based on all the limits, by the way, which included 

the one with another policy limit.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  But how can we say they didn't suffer a 

loss? There's a big judgment against them that was compromised, and 

insurance did pay that. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  So there's -- 

THE COURT:  But don't they stand in the shoes of Cosmo?  I 

mean -- 

MR. LOOSVELT:  So they -- 

THE COURT:  -- they did that to protect their insured. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  There's a different element that kind of 

addresses that, up under that, and that element is, the insured had an 

existing signable cause of action against the defendant, that they could 
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have asserted had they not been compensated.  So that's a completely 

separate element.  One of the other elements is whether or not the 

insured itself actually suffered a loss.  So after everything is done here 

and they've been paid, where is their loss?  There is none.  They're not 

out-of-pocket on -- 

THE COURT:  I think Counsel's standing up because I don't 

think he addressed the Aspen issues.  So hang on. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  Sure. 

THE COURT:  You'll get the last word.  And we'll let Counsel 

address the Aspen issues, because I --  

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  -- think you -- yeah. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I got all excited and sat down. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  I think you're correct. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  We -- 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Thank you very much.  First of all -- I'm 

just trying to collect my thoughts really quickly, Your Honor -- on this 

issue of whether any of the insureds suffered a loss, it's basic to 

subrogation law that the insured is not going to have been damaged, 

because the insurance company will have paid on its behalf.  And under 

the law of subrogation, which we go into in great detail -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- and the history and the evolution of 

subrogation, it's this fact that allows the insurance company to go and 
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pursue the tortfeasor to get recovery.  The insurance company's out of 

pocket.  They get the rights from the insured to pursue the tortfeasor to 

get reimbursed.  If there was actually a requirement that the insured had 

to be out of pocket, we'd never have a subrogation claim because the 

insured's company wouldn't have paid.  And I think that puts to rest that 

particular argument.   

But let me address the policy limits issue in the Aspen policy, 

because I think this is actually pretty clear.  What Aspen is trying to 

argue is that they have an endorsement amending the common policy 

conditions, that says, if this policy contains two or more coverage parts 

providing coverage for the same occurrence, accident, cause of loss, 

loss, or offense, the maximum limit of insurance, under all coverage 

parts, shall not exceed the highest limit of insurance under any one 

coverage part.  I think we have to assume that the insurance company 

knew what it was doing when it drafted its policy and use the term 

coverage part as opposed to some other term.  

THE COURT:  So the mere fact -- 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  We think -- 

THE COURT:  -- that ultimately in the settlement, if Aspen 

paid -- hypothetically speaking, if Aspen only paid one million out of the 

ultimate settlement, that's not controlling, because you still have to 

determine -- not controlling on the issue of, did they have a settlement 

offer within their policy limits which they could've taken.  The mere fact 

that when they negotiated a settlement, their contribution to that 

settlement may have been one million; that's not controlling on the 
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question of whether or not they did in fact have an offer to settle they 

could've settled for within their policy limits. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  That's correct, Your Honor.  But what I 

think is controlling is, and the issue is whether there's a $1 million limit 

or a $2 million limit.   

And we get down to this question of, what's a coverage part?  

There are several coverage parts in the Aspen policy.  There's a general 

liability coverage part.  There's a liquor liability coverage part.  And there 

are other coverage parts referred to within the policy.  In the general 

liability coverage part, there are two distinct coverages.  There is bodily 

injury and property damage coverage, and there's personal and 

advertising injury coverage.  Under bodily injury coverage, you have to 

have an occurrence for there to be coverage, an occurrence defined as 

an accident. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  So I understand this.  And so -- but how 

do we need discovery on that? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  I'm sorry? 

THE COURT:  Why would be need discovery on that?  I mean, 

is -- again, is that just something the Court can say, I think you're wrong.  

It's $2 million because he had both his injury -- because that was a big 

part of this thing, was his damages, the financial loss due to his 

reputation of his inability to run his hedge fund, allegedly.  So the Court 

could just say, I think that's 2 million and you've already said there was 

an offer for 1.75.  Therefore, as a matter of law, you blew it. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Yes.  But I think it's important for us -- 
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THE COURT:  So -- 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- to argue the legal question. 

THE COURT:  So but what would we look for in -- because, 

again, motion to dismiss; what would we be looking for at this stage of 

the litigation, to say, can you prove that? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Well -- 

THE COURT:  Is there anything out there? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- I think it's -- 

THE COURT:  Or it's just a legal issue? 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  -- a legal question, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  And I think you have to look at the policy 

and look at it closely in terms of what it is the policy says. 

THE COURT:  Then can it be determined on a motion-to-

dismiss standard, or does it need discovery? 

MR. REEVES:  If he's going to concede a $1.5 million offer 

and you find $2 million, then the answer would be yes.  You have what 

you need. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  They failed to settle the case -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. REEVES:  -- I mean, to your point, or relative to that 

concession.  

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. REEVES:  It's an allegation.  And if we're going to say in 
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open court that that concession is binding, then -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thanks. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  I agree it is a legal question as to what the 

limit is.  And so he just talked about an endorsement for different 

coverage parts, all right?  But when we look at the CGL coverage part, 

there's A, B.  You have a section of bodily injury and you have a section 

of this personal and advertising injury.  All these CGL coverage parts are 

subject to the each occurrence limit of $1 million.  It doesn't matter the 

amount of injuries that result under that.  And that's what the case law 

shows and says.   

So what you have here is a legal question of what applies.  Is 

it the one million or is it the two million?  Anything under the CGL, we 

have an each-occurrence limit of $1 million.  It doesn't matter, like in the 

Bisch case, when the Nevada Supreme Court recognized that it was this 

causal approach to when an occurrence applies, that it was this horrible 

thing where this little girl was being backed over, back and forth, back 

and forth.  It wasn't multiple injuries that determined multiple 

occurrences.  It was one causal common event.  And that's this incident 

that happened at Moro [phonetic] Peak.   

Whether that resulted in him being falsely imprisoned and 

being beat up by the security guard -- if that's kind of what the 

allegations parse out -- but it's that one common cause, is that one 

occurrence, and it's that $1 million policy limit that applies to the CGL 

coverage of which the bodily injury and the personal and false 

advertising. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  All right. Great.  Thanks.  Fine. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  Your Honor, I didn't get a chance to 

actually finish my argument, because it has to do with this question that 

he just raised, where they argue about occurrences and there are two 

different types of coverage under the CGL coverage part; one that 

doesn't require an occurrence, one that requires an offense.  And the 

offense in this case is false imprisonment.  We have an offense of false 

imprisonment for which there's a $1 million limit, and we have an 

accident that caused bodily injury, for which there's $1 million limit, 

hence, $2 million. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MS. KELLER:  Sorry. 

THE COURT:  I'll take a look at this because this -- again, 

we're at the motion-to-dismiss stage. So now that we've opened the 

official envelope, there is arguably one thing that -- I mean, Ms. Keller 

may be right, that we may need the St. Paul policy, either for summary 

judgment purposes or as a supplement to the motion to dismiss, to 

make the legal determination.  Because on that one, I'm having a hard 

time understanding what's left.  Why can't we do this at this stage?  

What do we need to litigate over?   

Same thing with Aspen.  Again, for motion-to -dismiss stage, 

I see those -- Mr. Salerno's correct.  The two insurance issues, although 

very different -- very different -- are distinct from the Marquee issue.  So 

the question on the insurance policies is, what do we need?  If not 

granting a motion to dismiss, what are we proceeding on?  Granting?  
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Denying?  Are we making a determination in their favor in the case that 

they win at this point in time?  The Marquee issue is, to me, it's very 

different.  And that's why I asked, you know, why are we having one set 

of Counsel argue this?  Because I appreciate Counsel saying, but these 

are not inconsistent.  Really?  Really?   

MR. REEVES:  One observation, Your Honor --  

THE COURT:  Okay.  So I'll take it under consideration.   

MR. REEVES:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  I'll let you know. 

MR. REEVES:  May I make one observation? 

THE COURT:  Sure.  And they can have their closing -- 

MR. REEVES:  Well, we didn't -- 

THE COURT:  -- word, too. 

MR. REEVES:  -- file a motion, so when, you know -- 

THE COURT:  All right.   

MR. REEVES:  -- ordinarily when we adjudicate issues like 

this, we have cross-motions -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  And that's why --  

MR. REEVES:  -- and each side is seeking relief, and -- 

THE COURT:  That's why I'm saying, are we essentially 

saying, then, at this stage, if we're all agreeing, it's a purely legal issue? 

MR. REEVES:  Yeah.  I mean, I -- we'd almost like to be 

characterized as the moving party relative to -- you know, co-moving 

party -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

AA01474



 

- 53 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

MR. REEVES:  So, understood. 

THE COURT:  And so -- 

MR. REEVES:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  There is no motion for a summary judgment 

pending on any of this. 

MR. REEVES:  Understood.  I'm --  

THE COURT:  It's all a motion to dismiss -- 

MR. REEVES:  -- just pointing out a procedural irregularity -- 

THE COURT:  It's --  

MR. REEVES:  -- that we're --  

MR. SALERNO:  Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- briefly?  I'm not sure if Your Honor wants 

to entertain supplemental briefing, if you feel like you need St. Paul's 

policy, we'd be happy to do that. 

THE COURT:  I'll let you know. 

MR. SALERNO:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  If I think that that's going to be a critical 

factor -- 

MR. SALERNO:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  -- such that it would be --   

MR. SALERNO:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  -- deciding thing and there wouldn't be any 

other facts. 

MR. SALERNO:  To the extent Your Honor is prepared to rule, 
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I would like to have the record reflect that we did object to the sur reply -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. SALERNO:  -- and requested to strike that -- 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. SALERNO:  So for the record, we would ask for your 

ruling on that as well. 

MR. DEREWETZKY:  And we objected to the two-month-late-

filed reply brief of Aspen and ask that it be stricken. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. LOOSVELT:  And we oppose that, and counter move for 

approval of the reply, so -- 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.  So as I said, I will 

look at that and determine if, in fact, there is anything additional needed, 

or if, really, at this point in time with what we've got, we're done.  

Because I kind of think it's one or the other.  So thank you very much. 

IN UNISON:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you very much for time, everybody.  

 [Proceedings concluded at 12:34 p.m.] 
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William Reeves

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 10:51 AM

To: Nicholas Salerno

Cc: Andy Herold; Kathleen Harrison; 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Ramie Morales

Subject: RE: Moradi

To be clear:

• Original inquiry was made on Calendar Day 7 (or, as you state below, 1 business day before 10 calendar days are
scheduled to elapse)

• Follow up was made on Calendar Day 10 (Business Day 6) with a call later that day between us in which no mention
was made of your view as to the deadline

• On Calendar Day 11 (Business Day 7), you substantively responding to our inquiry while contending the Opp is now
untimely

Interesting timing. Under your logic, no extension is needed since we are already too late. Meanwhile, per the Court's
website, the rules remain unchanged.

We will raise with the Court.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 9:45 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: Andy Herold; Kathleen Harrison; 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Ramie Morales
Subject: RE: Moradi

Bill –

This exchange seems unproductive. You requested an extension the business day before your oppositions were due and
apparently did not appreciate the rule changes. We were not able to address your request with our client until the
deadline had passed. You have offered no understandable reason why additional time would be needed to brief the
same legal issues for a third time with the court. Nonetheless, we have offered you a proposal that provides some
additional time for the briefing under a reservation of rights. Please advise how you wish to proceed.

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 9:40 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: Andy Herold <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; Kathleen Harrison <kharrison@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Jeremy
Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Ramie Morales <rmorales@mfrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

The exchange set forth below speaks for itself. Not sure what sentences you are referring to. At this point, feel free to
clarify and/or expound upon where you believe I have erred.
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William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 9:33 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: Andy Herold; Kathleen Harrison; 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Ramie Morales
Subject: RE: Moradi

Bill –

Apparently, you see some benefit to casting unfounded accusations. We tried to explain how this developed from our
end on the phone yesterday and you would only make similar unfounded accusations without allowing us to even
complete a sentence. This is your error. Please clarify if you are rejecting the proposal.

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2019 7:38 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: Andy Herold <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; Kathleen Harrison <kharrison@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Jeremy
Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Ramie Morales <rmorales@mfrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Odd proposal since we requested the extension on calendar Day 7. Given this, it appears AIG strategically stalled in an
effort to manufacture its timeliness argument. Unfortunate and disappointing gamesmanship.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 3:40 PM
To: wreeves@mfrlegal.com
Cc: Andy Herold; Kathleen Harrison; Jeremy Stamelman
Subject: FW: Moradi

The proposal is as follows:

 St. Paul to file its opposition to National Union’s and Marquee’s motions for summary judgment by October 4.
 National Union and Marquee reserve their rights to contend St. Paul missed its deadline to file oppositions to

their motions for summary judgment.
 National Union and Marquee to file their replies by October 18.
 Parties agree to move the October 23 discovery motion hearing date until after the new MSJ hearing date.
 Discovery stay in place through new MSJ hearing and new discovery motion hearing.

If acceptable, please provide proposed stipulations for the Judge and for the Discovery Commissioner to accomplish the
above.
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From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 12:23 PM
To: 'Nicholas Salerno' <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Andy Herold' <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Kathleen Harrison' <kharrison@heroldsagerlaw.com>; Jeremy
Stamelman <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Go ahead and make a proposal and we will convey it to our client.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 12:19 PM
To: wreeves@mfrlegal.com
Cc: Andy Herold; Kathleen Harrison; Jeremy Stamelman
Subject: Moradi

Bill –

As we tried to explain during the call today, EDCR 1.14 has been suspended by the Eighth District pursuant to the
attached Administrative Order, effective March 12, 2019. As such, the exclusion of weekends and holidays for deadlines
of less than 11 days no longer applies nor does the mail rule. The deadline for the oppositions has passed and we do not
have client authority to extend an already passed deadline. However, we believe our clients would be agreeable to an
extended briefing period that is not as lengthy as proposed with the proviso that (i) my clients reserve all rights relating
to the missed opposition deadline and (ii) the hearing on the motion to phase discovery is moved commensurately to a
time after the MSJ hearing.

Please let us know if there is any interest in an approach of this nature.

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 11:10 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Andy Herold <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Jeremy
Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Ramie Morales <rmorales@mfrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

I do not understand the purpose of the call. Per below, you refused any extension. Has there been a change in position?

Local Rules obtained via the Clark County website today are attached. Let me know what I am missing.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 10:50 AM
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To: William Reeves
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Andy Herold; 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Ramie Morales
Subject: RE: Moradi

We will give you a call at 11:00 PM.

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 10:25 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Andy Herold <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Jeremy
Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Ramie Morales <rmorales@mfrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

No idea what confusion or options you are referencing. I am around.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 10:18 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Andy Herold; 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Ramie Morales
Subject: RE: Moradi

Bill –

Your response indicates some confusion as to where we are coming from. Are you available for a call at 11:00 AM to
clarify and discuss options?

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 10:07 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Andy Herold <aherold@heroldsagerlaw.com>; 'Jeremy
Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>; Ramie Morales <rmorales@mfrlegal.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Your response below is disappointing and reflects a lack of professional courtesy.

As you know, LR 1.14 provides that weekends are excluded from time calculations. The recent changes in the NRCP do
not trump these rules, a fact highlighted by your comment below that our Oppositions to your 40+ page dispositive
motions are due in 10 calendar days, which is ludicrous.

As stated during your call, the additional time requested is, in part, to permit for us to coordinate with our clients in
opposing the motions. I assume the same was true when your office previously requested extensions which we agreed to
afford as a matter of professional courtesy.

Given your position outlined below, I see no reason for a further call. If you believe otherwise, I am reachable per
below. All rights remain reserved.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
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Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 9:15 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman'; Andy Herold; Jeremy Stamelman
Subject: RE: Moradi

Bill –

NU’s and Marquee’s motions for summary judgment are premised on the same legal arguments that were briefed in the
two rounds of their motions to dismiss so it is unclear why St. Paul needs the additional weeks when those legal issues
have already been briefed at length. When we spoke yesterday, you did not offer a particular reason for the extension
request and our clients do not understand what St. Paul’s good cause would be for the amount of time requested.

In addition, we have reviewed the rules and are confused by St. Paul’s request because the deadline for St. Paul to file its
oppositions is now past: 10 days from the filing and service of the motions for summary judgment. We cannot agree to
an extension of a past deadline.

Please let us know if you would like to set a call today to discuss St. Paul’s basis for an extended briefing period.

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 24, 2019 7:25 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Let me know on the extension.

Note that we plan to involve the Court via Emergency Motion if needed.

Thanks.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: William Reeves [mailto:wreeves@mfrlegal.com]
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 11:32 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman'
Subject: RE: Moradi

Works. Talk to you then.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776
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From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 11:28 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman'
Subject: RE: Moradi

How about 1:30 PM?

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 10:49 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Cc: 'Jeremy Stamelman' <jstamelman@kelleranderle.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Yes.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: Nicholas Salerno [mailto:nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com]
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 10:46 AM
To: William Reeves
Cc: Jeremy Stamelman
Subject: RE: Moradi

Are you available to discuss this afternoon?

From: William Reeves <wreeves@mfrlegal.com>
Sent: Monday, September 23, 2019 10:03 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno <nsalerno@heroldsagerlaw.com>
Subject: RE: Moradi

Let me know. Thanks.

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

From: William Reeves [mailto:wreeves@mfrlegal.com]
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2019 9:19 AM
To: Nicholas Salerno
Subject: Moradi

Do you want to set a briefing schedule for the AIG and Marquee motions? Opps due in 30 days and replies due 21 days
thereafter?

William C. Reeves
MORALES • FIERRO • REEVES
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2151 Salvio Street, Suite 280
Concord, CA 94520
(925) 288-1776

******************PLEASE NOTE ***************
This email message and any documents accompanying this transmittal may contain privileged and/or confidential information and is
intended solely for the addressee(s) named above. If you are not the intended addressee/recipient, you are hereby notified that any
use of, disclosure, copying, distribution or reliance on the contents of this email information is strictly prohibited and may result in
legal action against you. Please reply to the sender advising of the error in transmission and immediately delete/destroy the
message and any accompanying documents. Thank you.
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INTRODUCTION

The underlying action triggered two coverages within Aspen's CGL Coverage Part: 1)

Coverage A - Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, which covers bodily injury caused by

an accident, i.e., negligence; and 2) Coverage B - Personal and Advertising Injury, which covers

injuries resulting from a variety of offenses including false imprisonment. Because the underlying

action alleged and the $161 million special verdict found liability based on bodily injury from

negligence as well as for false imprisonment, both coverages apply. Coverage A is subject to a $1

million per occurrence limit, limiting Aspen's indemnity obligation under Coverage A for damages

resulting from one occurrence to $1 million. Coverage B is subject to a personal and advertising

injury limit of $1 million, limiting Aspen's indemnity obligation under Coverage B for injury

sustained by any one person to $1 million. Aspen's indemnity obligation under the sum of both

coverage parts together is in turn limited by the general aggregate limit of $2 million. Therefore,

because both coverages were triggered by the underlying suit, Aspen had $2 million available to

settle this case and indemnify its insured.

Aspen disputes this plain language, arguing that: 1) the per occurrence limit applies to both

Coverage A and Coverage B; 2) its Coverage Part endorsement limits not just coverage under the

Coverage Parts of the policy, but also coverages within a Coverage Part; and 3) its policy is

ambiguous, and should be resolved against its insured to limit coverage. All of these arguments

fail to withstand even basic scrutiny. The policy plainly states the per occurrence limit of $1

million applies only to Coverage A, not Coverage B, and that the $1 million personal and

advertising limit applies to Coverage B, with both coverages together subject to the general

aggregate of $2 million. In fact, Coverage B does not require an occurrence or use that term

because many of the covered offenses are not occurrences, so to subject it to a per occurrence limit

would render Coverage B illusory. Aspen’s position is therefore necessarily wrong.

Aspen does not even attempt to address this actual policy language. Rather, it cites

irrelevant cases that only involved damages under Coverage A, and which therefore only involved

the per occurrence limit, for the proposition that the per occurrence applies to Coverage B as well.

Of course, these cases do nothing of the kind, since they did not involve Coverage B. In contrast,
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